Hnited States Bistrict Court

EASTERN DISTRICT OF LOUISIANA
In the Matter of the Search of
{Name, address or brief descriplion of person or property {o be searchad) APPLI}EATION AND AFFIDAVIT
1922 Margengo Street FOR SEARCH WA NT
New Orléans, Louisiana 70155 CASE NUMBER:
I, Edward 8. Cooper being duly sworn depose and say:
| am a(n) Special Ageni-Federal Bureau of Investigations - and have reason ic believe

Cfiicia! Tille
that [ on the person of or [X] on the premises known as (ame, desciiption andfor location)
1822 Marengo Street
New Orieans, Louisiana 70155
SEE SCHEDULE A

in the Eastern _ District of Louisiana
there is now concealed a certain person or property, namely (describe the person or property)
SEE SCHEDULE B

which iS (give alleged grounds ior search and seizure under Rule 41(h) of the Federal Rules of Griminal Proceduse)

Property that constitutes evidence of the commission of a criminal offense; or, contraband, the fruits of the
crime or things otherwise criminally possessed,

in violation of Title__18, 15 United States Code, Section(s) 201, 1343, 1346, 1349, 371 and 78dd-1 .
The facts to support the issuance of a Search Warrant are as foliows:

SEE ATTACHED AFFIDAVIT

Continued on the attached sheet and made a part hereof. Yes [ No
Signature of Affiant '—K‘
Sworn to before me, and subscribed in my presence

o Q/(Q o_C at  Lafayette, LA

Cityrand Staie

/Ba
. Euéne Davis, U.8. Circuit Court Judge

Name and Tiie of Juticial Officer




United States Histrict Court

EASTERN DISTRICT OF LOUISIANA

in the Matter of the Search of

{Name, address or brief description of psrson or properly {0 be searched)

1922 Marengo Street - SEARCH WARRANT

New Orleans, Louisiana 701585
CASE NUMBER;

TO:  Federal Bureau Of Investigations and any Authorized Officer of the United States
Affidavil(s) having been made before me by S/A Edward S. Cooper who has reason to
Afflant

balieve that [_] on the person of or [X] on the premises known as (ame, desoription andior Iccation)
1922 Marengo Strest

New Orleans, Louisiana 70155

SEE SCHEDULE A

in the Eastern District of -__Louisiana there is now
concealed a certain person or property, namely (describe the person or property)
SEE SCHEDULE B

| am satisfied that affidavit(s) and any recorded testimony establish probable cause to believe that the person or
property so described is now concealed on the person or premises above-described and establish grounds for the
issuance of this warrant.

YOU ARE HEREBY COMMANDED 1o search on or before

Date
:not to exceed 10 days) the person or place named above for the person or property specified, serving this
~arrant and making the search (in the daytime — 6:00 A.M. to 10:00 P.M.) (at any time in the day or night as i find
‘easonable cause has been established) and if the person or property be found there to seize same, leaving a
>opy of this warrant and receipt for the person or property taken, and prepare a written inventory of the person or
yroperty  seized and promptly return this warrant to W. Eugene Davis, U.S Circuit Court
35 required by law,

U8, Judge or Magistrate

m ll‘("'l Q—j 316 o = ] [/ ~ at Lafayette, LA

’Q and ]f ime lssued / City and State

V. Eugene Davis, U.8. Circuit Court Judge KJ Q"VA %

ame and Title of Judicial Officer Signature of Judzléial Office




RETURN
DATE WARRANT RECEIVED! DATE AND TIME WARRANT EXECUTED | COPY OF WARRANT AND RECEIFT FOR ITEMS LEFT WITH

o7lp4 | 2ees oglos[zoos 10200 Andren G TeHers on
INVENTORY MADE IN THE PRESENCE OF

,Ant)rfa Gy '.._J—Q'H*‘ﬁm'om

INVENTORY OF PERSON OR PROPERTY TAKEN PURSUANT TO THE WARRANT

56( a‘HchI/\?EJ F’BI ‘FO‘SCW “;Qec.e,\p"l’ -ﬁw f)rmfe/""?r Sle.'zecsﬂ

CERTIFICATION

I swear that this inventory is a true and detailed account of the person or property taken by the warrant.

SA Gr"(‘.‘&mr'( Haedee

Subscribed, sworn to, and returned before me this date.

w : 7:‘—(/-« Tar— Y ] S, Peood

u.s. gﬁdge or Magistrate [ Date




SCHEDULE 2
(Degcriptions of Properties to be Searched)

1. The real property and premises known as 1922

Marengc Street, New Orleans, Louisiana, is the rezmidence of
Congressman William J. Jefferson, more particularly described as
a two-story, white with baby blue trim, family dwelling IownHouse
with a front portico addition with door columns and six windows
above the porch. This residence is located on the southeast
corner of the intersection of Marengo and Dryades Street. On the
ground-level of this two-story building ie a single door on the
porch with a window to its left. When facing the residence,
there ig a paved drive-way used for parking to the left. There
is likely a side and/or back entrance to the regidence, but an
actual visual of these entrance was not obtained.

2. The real property and premises known as the Office

Swetland and Childress, Certified Public Accountants, 650 Poydras
Street, Suite 2245, New Orleans, Louigiana 70130, more
particularly described as being situated on the 22nd floor of =
gray 28-story building constructed of concrete. The front
entrance of this building contained the addrese, "650 Poydras, "
and name of the building "Poydras Plaza," which faces Poydras
Street. This building is located to the northeast corner of the
intersection of Poydras and Camp Street. There is a parking lot
that faces the Federal Courthouse on the Camp Street side of the
building. A margue on the lobby level of this building noted
that "Swetland and Childress" was located in Suite 2245. Suite
2245 is secured by a solid wooden door, and there is= a door-gized
window to the left of the door. This window conceals the room
behind it with closed blinds. The window contained the numbers
"2245" scribed in white on its face. The margue in the lobby
also listed "Jefferson Interests" as an occupant of Suite 2245,
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UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE '
FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION J/ng

Receipt for Property Received/Returned/Released/Seized

Filew DIC-WE. 52580

On (date) O 00/03/017 005 item(s) listed below were:

] Received From
Returned To

] Released To
[:Q- Seized
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AFFIDAVIT IN SUPPORT OF APPLICATION FOR SEARCH WARRANTS

1, Edward S. Cooper, being duly sworn, depose and state

as follows:

I. INTRODUCTION

1. I am a Special Agent with the Federal Bureau of
Investigation {“FBI"), United States Department of Justice. I
have been employed by the FBI for the past twenty-three years. I
am currently assigned to the Northern Viiginia Resident Agency of
the FBI on the public corruption and government fraud squad,
located in Tysons Corner, Virginia. Since bec¢oming an FBI agent,
1 have conducted over 100 investigations of criminal offenses.
geveral of these matters have involved public corruption. These
investigationg have led to my participation in numerous arrests
and the execution of search warrants. I have also participated
in several investigations involving court-authorized interception
of wire, oral, and electronic communications.

IT. REASON FOR AFFIDAVIT

2. Based on information obtained by me, including
information relayed to me by other special agents of the FBI, and
other sources to this investigation, there is probable cause to
believe that there is kept and concealed within the premises

known and described as:

a. 1922 Marengo Street;
New Orleans, Loulsiana 70155; and




b. 650 Poydras Street, Suite 2245
New Orleans, Louisiana 70130

fruits, instrumentalities and evidence of violations of: a)
Title 18, United States Code, Section 201 {bribery of a public
official; b) Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1343, 1346
and 1349 (wire fraud - deprivation of honest services); c) Title
18, United States Code, Sections 1343 and 1342 (wire fraud -
scheme defraud); @) Title 15, United States Code, Section 78dd-1,
et seg., {bribery of a foreign official); and e) Title 18,
United States Code, Section 371, {(conspiracy to commit bribery,
wire fraud, bribery of a foreign official). The first location
to be searched is the residence of United States Congressman,
William J. Jefferson, 2™ District of Louisiana. The second
location to be gsearched is the office of Swetland & Childress.

3. The two locations to be searched are described in more
detail in Schedule A to this affidavit. The evidence to be
seized is described in Schedules B (Congressman Jefferson’s
residence) and ¢ {(offices of Swetland & Childress) to this
affidavit.

4. The facts and information contained in this affidavit
are based upon my personal knowledge and the investigation and
observations of other officers and agents involved in the
investigation. All observations noted below that were not
personally made by me were related to me by the persons who made

such observations. This affidavit contains information necessary

-2-




to support probable cause for this application. It is not
intended to include each and every fact and matter observed by me
or known to the government.

III. THE INVESTIGATION

5. This investigation began in approximately March 2005,
when Cooperating Witness (“CW”) approached the FBI and
communicated CW's suspicion that CW had been a victim of a fraud
and bribery scheme involving Vernon Jackson, Brett Pfeffer and
United States Coﬁgressman William J. Jefferson.' The CW
suspected that these individuals conspired to defraud CW out of
$3.5 million which CW paid to Vernon Jackson’'s Louisville,
Kentucky company, iGate, Incorporated, the deﬁeloper of a
telecommunications technoclogy for use on copper wires. CW
related that the money was paid with the understanding that iGate
would use it to reacguire the rights to the technelogy from
another company that had already bought the rights to the
technelogy from iGate. According to CW, Jackson could not
produce procf that those rights, which CW was to use for a

businesgs venture in Nigeria, had been reacquired. In addition,

! W is a person located in McLean, Virginia, who has
been providing reliable and credible information to the FBI since
March 2005. In addition, the information provided by CW has been
corroborated by consensually recorded conversations that CW has
participated in at the directicn of the FBI. My statements
below, summarizing CW'eg interactions with others involved in the
various iGate business ventures prior to March 2005, are based on
numerous interviews of CW by me and Special Agent Timothy R.
Thibault of the FBI.

=3 -




CW related to the FBI that Congressman Jefferson had asked CW for
a percentage ownership interest in CW's Nigerian company (five to
seven percent to be placed in the names cf Congressman
Jefferson's children) in exchange for his assistance in using
official acte to support the Nigerian business venture.

6. The targets of this investigation include, but are not

limited to the following:

a. William J. Jefferson: was born on |G
I - ¢ is currently serving his seventh term in

the United States House of Representatives, representing the 2nd

District of Louisiana. He ig a member of the House Ways and
Means Committee (sub-committee on Trade), the Congressional
Africa Trade and Investment Caucus, the Congressional Black
Caucus and the Congressional Caucus for Nigeria (hereinafter also
referred to as the “Nigerian Caucus”). He is a graduate of
Southern University AT&T College, Harvard Law Schocol {(JD}, and
Georgetown University (LLM - Tax). Jefferson previousgly served
three terms as a member of the Louisiana State Senate.

b. Vernon Jackson: was born on || GzGzGcg 21¢ i=

the [ - cesident and CEO of iGate, Incorporated

(*iGate®), a technelogy firm that touts its “Triple Play”
business, which enables audio, video, and data to be transmitted

over copper wire. IGate is headguartered in Louisville, Kentucky

and has an office in Hackensack, New Jersey.




c. Brett M. pfeffer: was born on | INENEGING

and owns a consulting firm named OTN. Since January

1, 2004, Pfeffer has been employed as the President of an
investment firm owned by CW and located in McLean, Virginia. In
the mid-1990's, Pfeffer served on the congressional staff of
William Jefferson in both his New Orleans and Washington, D.C.
offices. Pfeffer resides in Herndon, Virginia.

d.

[

? Throughout this affidavit, I refer to telephone calls
intercepted from the Target Telephone and consensually recorded
conversations involving CW and others. With regard to the
selected conversations presented here, several caveats apply.
Summaries and quotations are preliminary and have been prepared

-5-




IV. SUMMARY OF PROBABLE CAUSE

8. The facts and circumstances described below outline
the probable cause that United States Congressman William J.
Jefferson, acting in concert with the other targets, has sought,
is currently seeking, and in some cases, has already accepted,
financial backing and/or concealed payment (s) of equity interests
in business ventures located in the United States, Nigeria and
Chana (things of value) in exchange for his undertaking of
official act(s) as a United States Congressman while promoting
the business interests of the targets, including Jefferson
himgelf.

9. Congressman Jefferson has in the recent past and is
currently attempting to use his official position as a United
States Congressman to commit official acts in promoting the sale
of communications equipment and related services offered by
iGate, a U.8. communications firm seeking to provide
communications, data transfer, media, internet and other services

in Nigeria, Ghana and possibly other African Nations.? 1In

by me or provided to me by other law enforcement agents: final
transcripts have not yet been prepared. As a result, it is
possible that changes to the summaries and quotations may occur
during the preparation of transcripts.

} Evidence also suggests that almost of half of the $3.5
million payment made by CW in 2004 to iGate to obtain the
exclusive rights to iGate’'s technology was not used for the
purpose represented, leaving CW's company and ancther company,
which had also paid iGace for exclusive rights to its technology,
with competing claims to the same rights.

-6 -




exchange for his official acts supporting the proposed business
ventures, Congressman Jefferson has already received a 30% equity
stake in a Nigerian company controlled by CW.! At Congressman
Jefferson’'s direction, the stock representing this interest has
been placed in the name of a Nigerian L.L.C. held by Jefferson’'s
children. A similar arrangement 1s currently being negotiated by
Congressman Jefferson regarding the implementation of iGate
products and services in Ghana, whereby Jefferson has exchanged,
is currently exchanging and plans in the near future to exchange,
his official acts for a 30% eguity stake in a Ghanaian company
set up also under the control of the CW and created for the sole
purpose of marketing and distributing iGate’s technology and
services in Ghana.

10. The official acts performed by Congressman Jefferson in
exchange for his actual and/or sclicited receipt of stock in
thege foreign entities and other things of value include:
communicating with both the President and Vice President of
Nigeria in an effort to secure the iGate business venture there;
sending an cofficial letter to the Nigerian Vice President seeking
hig assistance in overcoming oppositicn to thé iGate busginess
venture from the government-owned Nigerian telephone company;

introducing CW to officials at the Export-Import Bank of the

" The evidence reflects that the Nigerian company controlled
by CW was created with the assistance of Congresgman Jefferson
and one of his daughters, alsc a lawyer.

.




United States to assist CW in obtaining loan guarantees for the
Nigerian and Ghanaian business ventures; writing an official
letter to the Vice President of Ghana to obtain approval of the
business venture in that country; traveling to Ghana, paid for by
CW, to meet with high-ranking government officials such as the
Vice President, the Minister of Communications, and others to
obtain approval to conduct the business venture there; usiﬁg hig
congressional staff to plan the trip to Ghana and to obtain
travel documents for the individuals making the trip with him;
and communicating with the U.S. Embassy and the U.S. Ambassador
to Ghana about the trip and scheduling of his meetings with
Ghanaian government cofficials.

11. In addition, Congressman Jefferson has solicited and
continues to solicit CW for substantial amounts of capital to be
used by Jefferson in his efforts to take control of iGate from
Vernon Jackson through the use of a nominee company Jefferson
directs through his children. This financing, of up to §£3
miilion, was proposed by Jefferson and is to be provided in
exchange for official acts by Congressman Jefferson as he
promotes the business ventures in Nigeria, Ghana and perhaps
elgewhere in Africa.

12. Finally, Congressman Jefferson has also discussed, with

CW and others, the payment of bribes to high-ranking foreign

government officials to promote the business ventures in Africa.




With regard to the Nigerian business venture, Jeffergon has

discussed the making of paymente to high-ranking government

officials there, including |GGG
Congressman Jefferson met with |EEEGEGEGNGGGEE
July 18, 2005, in Potomac, Maryland. According to Congressman
Jetferson, NG o -ccC to help secure
the necessary approvals for the participants in the Nigerian
business venture (iGate, CW’'s Nigerian company and a Nigerian
partner) to commence operations in Nigeria in exchange for at
least 50% of the profits planned to be received by (W’'s Nigerian
partner. In addition, Congressman Jefferson has discussed with
CW the payment of a substantial monetary sum by CW to | N
D i the range of up to $500,000) before the
commencement of business operations in Nigeria. Congressman
Jefferson and CW have discussed and continue to discuss the
manner in which that payment should be made. Moreover, Jefferson
has also told cWw that it is likely that|i i
! receive a share of the profits of a joint venture
to be set up in that country, in exchange for his assistance in

obtaining the necessary approvals for the commencement of the

business venture there.




